
tlNITEn NATIONS

General_Assembly
..·OKT\'· ..·ot!IHn SI';SSIO~

(~ffl(.'/al Rffurd,\'

FIFTH COMMITTEE
4th meeting

held on
Wednesday, 4 October 1989

at 3 p.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 4th MEETING

ChlixroJ~ the Aay~y Committee OD A4miDlltrlt1Yo and
~~aget.ry Que,tioDI' Mr. MSILLE

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 1'7, JOINT INSPECTION UNIT

AGENDA ITEM 1211 FINANCIAL REPORTS AND AUDITr.O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AND REPORTS
OF THE BOARD OF AUDITORS

I hl\ 11'\ llltl!'. \UI'II" I III \ 1'11,'·.:11111\

{ 1\1 Il" 111111\ ,hlll1"II1(' '1'111 UlIlh'1 Illl' \1",lldlllh' 111.1 IIlt'mh'"1 III Ilu' ,II'Il')Mlhlll t 1111\ l'lm'll

\1111"""", un!. ,'111" ./.JI. ,./ J'"M",II"JI,llIllu' ("hl\'l 1,1 tilt" {lll.\ 1.11 ~kU\hh, I dllmr "', IIl1n. KII,IIIIIH'.' I'll,

.' \'IIII\'\IIl." Inl!\ 1'1.11,1. ,11,,1111\ 1'lIhllallrtllll.1, "I" ,llltH' h', IIld

B9-56080 15015 (E)

Distr. GENERAL
AlC.5/44/SR.4
16 October 1989
EnGLISH
ORIGINAL' SPANISH

I . ••Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 5/44/SR. 4
EngUsh
Page :2

AGENDA ITEM 1271 JOINT INSPECTION UNIT (A/44/34, A/44/129 and A/44/488)

1. Mr •.HENNES (Chairman of the
~nd two notes issued by JIU from
chapter IX ol document A/44/34.
Cormnlttee had been summarized in

Joint Inspection Unit) said that the 14 reports
1 July 1988 to 30 June 1989 were summarized in
The five reports of direct interest to the
parts B, F, I, M and N of chapter IX.

2. Paragraph 15 of tho document again mentioned the problem of the Fifth
Committee's ovorburdened agenda. None the loss, he hoped that the Committee could
[inn time to consider the five reports before it and take clear decisions on the
rocommendations they contained.

1. With regard to recommendation 63 of the Roport of the Group of High-level
Exports to Review the Efficiency of the Administrative and Financial Functioning of
t.he United Nations (A/41/49) he pointed out that t.he quefllion of a changE.' of name
(or JltJ was still pending. The Committee might wish to take steps to formally
npprove the change of name.

4. 110 concluded by observing that while the Inspectors were independent, they had
t.o be answerable tr. some organ, in this Cbse, the Fifth Committee, otherwise, their
work woule suffer. Consequently, it was very important for the Committee to help
t.hom make t.hoir work more efficient.

AGENDA ITEM 1211 FINANCIAL REPORTS AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS OF
TH~ BOARD OF AUDITORS (A/44/5/Add.l, 3, 4, 5 and 7, A/44/3S6, A/44/537, A/44/54l,
A/44/543 ann A/44/544)

5. The CHAIRMAN drew attention to an error on page 22 of the Engl;9h text of
document A/44/544 in the second line of paragraph 791 the document symbol
A/43/S/Add.8 should read A/43/S.

6. Mr. MS~t.ot.oE: (Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions) said that documents A/4t1/541 and A/44/S44 reported on the implementation
of the recommendations of the Board of Auditors by the United Nations and relevant
entities. The Board had referred to the progress made in that area in itd reports,
flnet t.he Advisory Committee had therefore made no comment in that connection.

7. Document. A/44/S37 examined the question of the presentation and format of
tin~nci~l statements bnd accounting policies of all audited organizat.ions and
programmes, in accordance with the request cent.ained in General Assembly
resolution 43/216. It was concluded that considerable progress had be~n made on
that question. Tahles 1 and 2A compared the presentation of financial statements
nnd Riqnific~nt accounting policies of the various entities. Although it would
}\8Ve been glad to see a more detailed analysis of the differences which still had
to be resolved, the Advisory Committee welcomed the suggestions made in the
report. It took note of the statement in paragraph 9 to the effect that the

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 3

presentation of financial reports and statements should be based on the general
princi~les of clarity, simplicity, meaningfulness and full disclosure but believed
that much remained to be done if those objective. were to be attained. For
example, it would be necessary to simplify and reduce the number of financial
statements and schedules in reports submitted to the Assembly.

8. The Advisory Committee recommended that the General Assembly should accept tho
conclusions in document A/44/537. However, to avoid confusion, there was a need to
differentiate between the standardization and harmonization of financial policies,
on the one hand, and the standardization and harmonization of accounting policie:;,
on the other. That distinction was not made sufficiently clear in paragraphs 14
and 17 of the document under consideration. The Advisory Committee was of the
opinion that a start could be mado by considering the possibility of introducing
further changes in United Nations presentation and accounting pOlicies, with a view
to making changes in other entities at a later date.

9. Mr..L-~~QMA':\}~ (Japan) said tlll'~t the Committee had receive~ sb: reports from th~!

Board of Auditors, most of them coveting the organs involv~d in the major economic
and humanitarian activities of the United Nations. At a time when trnited Nations
organs were expected to play a greater role in multilateral co-operation to
strengthen peace and security, it was of primary importance that clear and accurat~

accounts should be kept in order to bolster the confidence of States in the
activities oC the United Nations and ensure the utilization of the resources
provided by the Member States as efficiently as possible and for the purposes for
which they were intended.

10. THe report.s of the auditors provided a useful basis for strengthening and
improving thA efficiency of United Nations orqans through the interaction between
Member States and the secretariats of those organs. He therefore welcomed the
reports on t.he implementation of the recommendations and observations of the Board
and the Advisory committee (Al44/541 and A/44/54o!). Although they were lLite in
issuing them, the bodies concerned had demonstrated a sincere willingnoss to
respond to those recommendations and observations.

11. With regard to the points raised in paragraph 4 of document A/44/541, his
delegation, while acknowlodging the extreme caution exercised by the Secretaliat III

the review of existing unliquidated obligations, felt that to record the remaillin~

balances as accounts payable was n~ither ~ uniform treatment of the prior y~ars'

unliquidated obligations ~t all United Nations offices and the regional commissions
nor an accepted general practice for United Nations bodies. It should only be usell
in exceptional cases. With regard t.o paragraph 9, he noted that an of fort had beon
made to ensuro nn equi table distr ibution of programme suppor t. funds among programl1H'
and central administrative functions. The Secretariat should spell out how that
effort was reflected in the budget estimates for the biennium 1990-1991.
Paragraph 14 indicated that recommendation 45 of the Group of 18 should be r(lview~d

aftor the retrenchment nnd rostructuring had been completed. His dclegatilln would
liko to know whether th~t exorcise had now been completed, after three years of
staff reduct1on~.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 4

(Mr. Inomata. JApan)

12. With regar~ to paragraph 15, it wftnte~ to know when the retraining programme
was to be establishe~. Accor~ing to paragraphs 13 and 32, there were great
expectations about the contribution to be ma~e by the Integrated Management
Information System to the computerization of ~ata on staff an~ he trusted that the
Secretariat would implement the IHIS project expeditluusly in accor~ance with the
plan approved by the forty-thir~ General Assembly. With regard to paragraphs 22
and 34, his delegation wished to congratulate the United Nations Interim Force in
Lebanon (UNIFIL) on the pr~mptness with which it ha~ acted to comply with the
recommftn~ations of the Board of Auditors concerning procurement procedures and
internal control over fuel items and prefabricate~ units, especially since UNIFIL
was one of the major peace-keeping operations and should function with a high
degree of efficiency and economy.

13. With regard to the note of the Secretary-General concerning the implementation
of the recommendations of the Board of Auditors (A/44/S44), his oelegation
questioned the contention, with which the Board seemed to agree, that
over-expenditure of allotments (as ~istinguished from appropriations) did not
constitute a violation of the Financial Regulations and the legislative authority
of UNDP. Frequent over-expenditure of allotments would eventually erode the
credibility of the certifying function of the Administration and weaken budgetary
control, thus ~reating a pattern of expenditure deviating from the original
priorities assigned to activities.

14. His ~elegation supported the recommendations and observations of the Chairmen
of the Board of Auditors and the Advisory Committee concerning the reports of those
bodies. In particular, it shared the view t::.4t all observations of the
Administrations on the Board's reports should be made available to the Board prior
to the session at which they were finalized.

15. His delegation fully concurred with the view of the Board that the criteria
for recording unliqui~ated obligations should be based on the concept of the actual
delivery of goods and services, including acquisitions of equipment. There should
be no confusion between financial policy and accounting policy. There was no
question that development projects were implemented in a difficult environment, but
funds that would not materialize before a specific date should not be committed in
order to retain the balance of appropriations that would otherwise be surrendered
for more useful purposes. His delegation also noted the progress towards
resolution of the specific grounds for the Board's qualified opinions. It was its
understanding that the biennialization of the submission of audit financial
statements of UNDP to the General Assembly and the Governinq Council was aimed at
increasing the amount of information available on audi ted e:(pe.~ditures, but did not
introduce any change in accounting policy.

16. His delegation further agreed with the observation of the Board of Auditors
,that the Junior Professional Officers Programme of UNDP was now more a
supplementary source of staff than a training programme. The response of the
Administration to that observ~Liou was not satisfactory because it was proposing
the establishment of 12 statf development and training pvsts for the biennium

I . ..

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 5

(Mr. InQmlto. ~An)

1990-1991 without clarifying their relation to the JPO training programme.
Contrary to policy on JPOs, the trainees for those 12 posts would be moved to
regular posts after training in New Yorx and in the field.

17. His delegation had noted with great intere.t the prop' 111 made by the
Secretary-General in his report (A/44/53'7) on the standardization of the
presentation and format of the financial statements and accounting policies of all
audited organizations and programme.. Re.erving the right to revert to the
question at a later Itage, it requested the Secretariat to ~rovide further
i ..formation on the possible element, of the general framework for financial
statements it had suggested. That information was essential to any follow-up the
General Assembly might undertake pursuant to paragraph 13 of As.embly re.olution
43/216 of 21 December 1988.

18. Mr. lQUE (France) speaking on behalf of the twelve Statel members of the
Eurnpean Community, laid that the summary of the principal findings of the Board of
Auditors (A/44/356) and of the remedial action it considered neceasary showed that
certain general problems persisted in respect of budgetary control, which was often
inadequate, and in respect of cash management. Moat of the organizations whose
accounts had been aUdited seemed to ignore certain generally accepted accounting
principles and were making investments which exposed their funds to considerable
exchange risxs.

19. The Board ~ad also not.~ that procedures for submitting financial statements
were often imperfect or improperly followed and that, in .ome case., an
organization's financial report did not reflect the true situation of its
accounts. Those deficiencies, which had caused the Board to express qualified
audit opinions, must be corrected promptly.

20. The difficulties noted by the Board of Auditors in project planning and in
co-ordination among bodies responsible for techni~al co-operation programmes and
executing agencies unfortunately confirmed the findings of recent evaluations
carried out in the field and demonstrated the need to improve project preparation
and planning procedures.

21. The twelve States members of the European Community thanked the ~oard for also
evaluating management which was an important aspect of its mandate, and they urged
it to continue doing S01 dialogue which had been initiated between the Board and the
executive heads must be continued and intensified and the Board's recommendations
must be taken into account not only by the General ASftem~'ly but ~bove all hy the
governing bodies when they considered the proposed bUdgets of their programmes and
relevant issues. Accordingly the Twelve were pleased to hear that a representative
of the Board of Auditors had been invited to participate in the work of the
Governing Council of UNDP and they hoped that UNDP would continue that practice and
that the other governing bodies concerned would follow its example.

22. It was unfortunate that some documents had been submitted late. The Twelve
would like '~e Secretariat to give reasons for the delay and to say what measures

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 6

(Mr. Sour, France)

it planned to take to ensure that that did not happen again. They would also like
to know the reasons for the late submission of the reports requested by the General
Assembly in resolution 43/216 concerning measures adopted by the competent
governing bodies and executive heads in response to the observations and
recommendations of the Board of Auditors (paras. 5 and 6) and concerning the
possibility of standardizing the presentation and format of financial statements
and accounting policies of all audited organizations and programmes (para. 13).

23. Although they had had very little time, the Twelve had given careful
consideration to the report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the
recommendations of the Board of Auditors and of the Advisory Committee (A/44/54l).
It was surprising to see that in some cases the administration had chosen not to
follo~ the Board', recommendations, contrary to the provisions of resolution
43/216. They earnestly requested the Secretary-General to take the necessary steps
to ensure that thL provisions of paragraph 14 of that resolution were fully
implemented and to review the positions stated in paragraphs 4, 5 and 7 of the
report (A/44/54l). The purpose of the report was not to give the administration's
comments on the Board's recommendations but to state clearly what measures had been
taken to implement those recommendations.

24. The Twelve agreed with the Secretariat that the report of the
Secretary-General (A/44/537) on trie presentation and format of financial statements
and accounting policies of ail audited organizations and programmes was cilly a
partial response to the request of the General Assembly. They considered that it
was feasible and desirable to standardize further the financial statements of
agencies and programmes of the United Nations; the recommendations contained in
paragraph 19 of the report were a positive contribution in that direction. They
did not agree with the Secretariat that each agency or programme should determine
its own accounting standards and methods independently of the other United Nations
agencies (para. 16). Harmonization of accounting policies was at least as
important as harmonization of the presentation of financial statements. The Board
should keep the matter under review with a view to formulating specific proposals
regarding standardization to the General Assembly, The Joint Inspection Unit
should co-operate closely with the Board to that end.

Z5. Standardization of accounting policies would give all organizations clear and
similar rules concerning management and auditing, which did not lend themselves to
inte~pretation. Moreover, the smaller organizations could benefit from the
experience of tb~ larger and older ones, and that would considerably reduce
irregularitiss.

26. As in pre"ious years, the Board had expressed a qualifi~d audit 0p1n1on on the
financial stat .ents of UNDP and UNFPA, because of deficiencies in the accounting,
control and cer~ification mechanisms. tt was satisfying to see that those
organizations had made progress in respect of the timely certification of
expenditure incurred by specialized agencies, due in parti~ular to improved
collaboration between UNDP and those agencies and to the efforts of the Panel of
External Auditors. At its most recent session, the Governing Council of UNDP had

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 7

(Mr. Bour, France)

suggested that UNDP and UNFPA accounts should be audited biennially on the
understanding that the Board of Auditors would continue to monitor the accounts and
management of those organizations and to submit annual reports to the Fifth
Committee and to the governing bodie~ concerned. The Twelve would like to hear the
comments of the Chairman of the Board of Auditors on this proposal.

27. Problems had also been noted with respect to the accounting and auditing of
expenditures of projects executed directly by Governments or by non-governmental
organizations. Adequate procedures had not been worked out in all cases and the
specialized unit at Headquarters was not operating as it should. That was the
third year in a row that the Board had had to express a qualified audit opinion on
that type of expenditure and it was unfortunate that better control of
Government-executed expenditure had not yet been achieved. It would be necessary
to improve the guidelines governing the execution of such projects and to improve
their implementation.

28. The Board's audit op1n10n also contained observations concerning the validity
of the financial rules and accounting practices which, although not reservations,
as such, required prompt application of corrective measures.

29. It was surprising that a satisfactory answer had yet to be found to the
question of the recording of unliquidated obligations. Issuing a purchase order
and recording the obligation in the current year without taking into account the
actual delivery gave rise to substantial distortions and might even lead to
abuses. Both UNDP and UNFPA should consider the possibility of amending their
financial regulations with a view to harmonizing them with Regulation 4.3 of the
Financial Regulations of the United Nations, or clarify the method once and for
all, bringing it into line with generally accepted accounting principles.

30. The Board had also observed that cash management in UNDP and UNFPA did not
always follow ~ clearly defined policy and that the relevant guidelines were not
spelled out with sufficient precision. Resources allocated to development
activities were too scarce to expose them to exchange risks.

31. The comments concerning the recording of unlJquidated obligations applied
equally to UNRWA; the auditors noted shortcomings in presentation due to the use of
the system of accounting by fund. The Twelve wi~hed to know the Administration's
response to those comments, as well as its position concerning the post of global
cu~todian of the Area Staff Provident Fund.

32. With regard to UNITAR, the Twelve supported the conclusions of the the Board
of Auditors, especially those in paragraphs 19 and 20 of document A/44/5/Add.4,
since it had noted that expenditure had greatly exceeded the funds approved by the
Board of Trustees. Such abuse was all the more deplorable when the Institute's
financial situation was so serious. The Twelve shared the view of the Board of
Auditors that financial rule 106.1 sh?uld also apply to special-purpose-grant
projects, and they hoped that the corrective measures indicated in the report would

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 8

(Mu... Igur, .....l.rancl)

be edopted al soon as possible. In addition. they ur;ea the Executive Director of
UNITAR to apply without delay the plan of action to balance the Institute's bUdget.

33. The management deficiencies in UNHCR and the gross irregularities in a project
carried out by en implementing agency w.re deplorable.

34. With regard to puragraph 10 of General Alsembly resolution 43/216, the Board
of Auditors had recommended measure. to Itrengthen financial and administratlve
control. That was a fundamental aspect of the Boar~'s mandate and the Twelve
wished to support especially the recommendations aim.d at improvin1 the definition
and planning of technical co-operation projects and .nsuring great.r r.sp.ct,
during the earmarking of funds, for the priorities established ~y the gov.rning
bodies.

3S. The Board's comments about the constant increa•• in programme management and
support co.ts were a cause for concern. Th. Twelve .upported the Board'.
recommendation that ~lear guideline. for distinguishing ov.rhead coat. should be
established and applied.

36. Lastly, it was regrettable that the views .xpr••••d in the Fifth Committee
concerning the pre.entation of the Administration.' r.,ponses to the comments and
recommendations of the Board of Auditors had not always be.n follow.d. In future,
their response~ should appear immediately after the corre.ponding observations of
the Board of AUditors and not in a .eparate document.

37. The Twelve re.erved the option to make
the debate in order to rai •• new question.,
representative. of the ag.~cies concerned.
their view on document A/44/544.

a furth.r stat.m.nt in the cnur.e of
after they had liltened to the
They allo re.erved the right to Itate

38. ~~~A (India), referring to the report. of the Board of Auditors
(A/44/S/Add.l, 3, 4, 5 and 7) and the corresponding report of the Advisory
Committee (A/44/543), said that he agreed with the Advisory Committee that the
observations of the Administrationl should be made available to the Board before it
finalized its reportsl otherwise, the work of the Board, the Advisory Committee and
tha delegations was hampered.

39. With regard to the financial statementl of UNDP and UNFPA, the Board had
pointed out that a large number of headquarters posts in UNDP and UNFPA were being
financed from project budgets instead of from management and programme lupport
expenditure. In UNDP, the number of such posts had reached 97 in 1989,
representing 9.6 per cent of UNDP headquarters .taff. That practice did not
contribute to the objective of checking the growth of the administrative budget and
improving the organizations' efficiency. His delegation hoped that the guidelines
for delineating between ~rogramme expenditures, programme support costs and
operating costs would be made clearer. It also hoped that the UNFPA Administration
would do likewise.

I •••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
EngUah
r-age 9

(Mr. Gupta. India)

40. The Board had stated that the accounting principles for recorai~g unliquidated
obligations being used by the Administrations of UNDP, UNFPA and urii(~~A were
departinq from generally accepted accounting principles. As. result, s.vinqs
.gainst prior ye.rs' unliquid.ted obliq.tions were consider.blel for example, in
the Office for Project Services, the figure h.d been 31 per cent in 1988 comp.red
with 29 per cent in 1981. The Bo.rd had noted simil.r practices in sever.l UNDP
field offices I for example, in • number of c.se., unliquid.ted obligations had
been recorded at ~ear-end up to the unspent bal.nce of allotted funds, reg.rdless
of .ctu.l commitment. enter.d into, a practice which .rti~icially ex.gg.rat.d
expenditure. Hi. del.qation hoped th.t the .buses would be corrected .nd that the
Board and the Advisory Committee would keep th.t SUbject under clos8 scrutiny. In
the case ot UNP.WA, hi. delegation .gr.ed with the Bo.rd th.t the oblig.tions should
be .pecific and their validity limited to a definite period of time, certainly not
.xc••ding one ye.r.

41. Th. Board h.d m.ntioned c•••• wh.re expenditure exceeded allotm.nts in UNDP,
UNFPA and UNITAR. That w.s .n indication of a bre.kdown of budqet.ry discipline,
.nd the Admini.tration. concerned mu.t .ddress that problem.

42. Another important observ.tion m.de by the Board pert.ined to c••h m.n.aement
.nd policies reqardin9 foreign-exchange tr.nsactions. The Bo.rd had pointe6 out
that UNDP h.d luffered a los. of '25 million in the firlt quarter of 1989 alone
owing to currency fluctu.tion.. His deleg.tion agr••d with the Adviaory
Committee'. obaervations th.t, while lo••es due to .xch.nge-rate fluctuations could
not be elimin.ted, they cO\lld be minimi.ed. His deleg.tion would request the UNDP
Admini.tr.tion to review the current policy guideline. on exch.nqe tr.nslctions, in
ke.ping with the B~ard'. ob.ervation., with. view to revi.ing the maximum/minimum
holdinq. in dollar and non-doll.r currencies in order to lower the exposure to
exchanqe ri.kl.

43. AIIO in connection with UNDP, the Board had not.d that cor. budg.t r.sources
had been uled for extr.budget.ry .ctivities. His deleq.tion reiter.ted wh.t the
UNDP Governing Council itaelf h.d stated on aever.l occ.sions, namely that
extr.budqetary activities mu.t be fin.nced from extrabudqetary re.ources. He hoped
that the UNDP Administration would qive cle.r in.tructions to field offices in that
reqard.

44. The Board had also m.de aome relev.nt observations on personnel m.nagement in
UNDP, with particular reference to interreqional mobility, extended stay at
headquarters, and the use of the Junior Profes.ional OfflcerB programme to meet
regular staffinq need.. The B~ard's report also indicated that consultants were
being hir.d in ca.es where the work could be done by the regUlar .taff, or in order
to bypass staffing constraint.. Hi. delegation found totally unsatisfactory the
explanation offered by the UNDP Administration that consultants were appointed to
assist the staff in peak-time work. He hoped that the noardls observations would
be discussed in the UNDP Governing Council with a view to its giving appropriate
instructions to the Administration.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.!5/44/SR.4
Englilh
Page 10

(Mr. Gu»ta, Indi,)

45. Hil delegation agreed with the oblervation. of the Board and the Advilory
Committee that the activities of the United Nation. Development Fund t.or Women
(UNIFEM) and the UNDP Divi.ion of Women in D.ve1opmen~ .hould be carefully planned
and better co-ordinated to avoid duplication.

46. In the cale of UNFPA, the Board had p~inted out that the expenditure incurred
directly by UNFPA in re.pect of part execution of government-executed pr01ectl was
not reported in the Itatul-of-funda repor~ lubmitted by Governmenta. Hil
delegation wa. happy to note that the UNFPA Adminiltration had agreed to amend itl
guideline. on the .ubject.

47. Programme .upport COlt. charged bV certain non-governmental organilationl had
been al high al 103 per cent of programme COltl. Hil delegatior. agreed with the
Board that a realonable ceiling Ihould be ilnpoled in that regard. It allo agreed
with the Board that trult fundi Ihou1d be accepted only on a fully funded ba.i. and
that trult fundi in deficit Ihou1d not be allowed to operate.

48. He wal happy to note that the ratio of operating to pro~ramme coatl in the
ca.e of UNFPA had dMcrea.ed from 31.3 per cent in 1987 to 28.9 per cent in 1988 a.
a re.u1t of an incr.a.e in programme delivery.

49. The Board had oblerved lome weakne••e. ir. project management uling the
electronic data-proce.linq IYltem and the long-term p1anl ~~r office automation.
The Admintltration mUlt take the Board'l oblervationl into account. At the lame
time, he wal happy to note that the UNFPA Admini.tration had agr.ed to take
corrective mealurel with regard to the weakne••es pointed out by the Board in the
agreement between UNFPA and UNDP on the provilion of financial .ervicel.

50. The Board had identified ca.e. of di.reg~rd for UNFPA financial rule. in the
award of contracts. Such .ituations mUlt not be allowed to recur.

51. The Board had made a number of observationl in ita report on UNFPA'a
relationship with executing agencies, which involvvd a number of questionable
practices. Tho.e observations wer. pertinent and must be di.culsed in the UNDP
Governing Council with a view to taking corrective action.

52. The Board had also pointed to certain weaknesses in the accounting policies of
UNRWA, one glaring case of mismanagement being the Ar~a Staff Provident fund.
Between 1985 and 1988, there had been a 161 per cent increase in the fee. paid to
the Fund's investment managers and custodian, while investments had increased by
55 per ceut over the lame period. Both the Board and the Adviaory Committee ~ad

questioned the need for such staff, hi. delegation concurred with their view and
hoped that the UNRWA Administration would act to rectify the situ~tion.

53. With regard to the UNITAR accounts, the Board had observed that pledges to the
Institute were decreasing at an alarming rate, creating a ma6sive deficit in the
General Fund. UNITAR's debt to the United Nations had incre,sed from $1.61 million
to $2.55 milli~n between 1985 and 1988 - a rate of 59 per ceut. The Advisory

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
In;lhh
Pa;. 11

(Mr. au;ta. India)

Committ•• had .u;;.lt.d that n.w activiti•••hould b.;in only if fundi w.r.
availabl.. Th. Board had al.o di.~lo••d the ca•• of ftn individual who had r.c.iv.d
a 130,000 ;rant from a private foundation, ul1n; the narn. of UNITAR to partly
financ. hi. work which wa. actu~lly a UNITAR proj.ct. Hil d.l.;atlon a;r••d with
the Board and the Advilory Committ•• that the UNITAR Admini.tration .hould take
corr.ctiv. action.

54, With r.;ard to the financial r.port of the Offic. of the Unit.d Nationl H19h
Commislion.r for Refu;••• (UNHCR), the Board had mad. a numb.r of rel.vant .nd
u••ful obl.rvation. on diff.r.nt alp.ct. of fin.ncial mana;.m.nt. Thl UNHCR
Admini.tration .hould .xamin. tho•• ob•• rv.tion••

55, Sound financia~ mana;lm.nt of an orqani.ation r'Quir.d a co-opel'Qtiv.
r.lation.hip b.tw••n it. admini.tration, it. auditor••nd it. ;ov.rnin; council.
H. hoped that thl admlni.tr.tion. of the or9ani••tionl conc.rn.d would take the
Board'. ob•• rvation. ln • conltruetlv••pirit.

56. Hi. d.l.;ation re••rv.d the ri;ht to comm.nt furth.r on the item at a lat.r
st,a;••

57, MI. OLDFILT (Sw.d.n), .p••kin; on b.h.lf of the flv. Nordic eountri•• , ••id
that the Board of Audit~r. provid.d m.mb.r countri•• with c.rtifie.tion that th.ir
contributionl h.d blln u••d in accord.nc. with the int.~tion••t.t.d in pl.n••nd
budg.t., Th. Board .110 verifi.d or;.ni••tion.' m.n.;.ri.l p.rformanc.. Th. Board
had .uec••d.d in .ep.r.tin; tho•• two ••peet. of it. work .nd h.d provl~ed •
concil' .umm.ry of findiDql of common lnt.r•• t In document A/44/356. The Nordic
dele;.tion••ndor.ed the Board'. ;enerll findin9' .nd recomm.ndationl and, .lthou;h
in lom. in.t.nc•• they reco;ni ••d the m.rit. of oppo.in; .r;um.ntl put forw.rd by
or;ani••tions, found ~he ar;umentl of the Bo.rd of Auditor. convincin9'

58. Th. Nordic countrie. not.d with ••ti.faction that unqualified audit opinions
h.d been 9iv.n in the c•••• of UNRWA .nd UNHeR. Th.y would like to know whether
lo-call.d ul1e.rmarked fundi had been includ.d in the auditorl' r.view of UNHCR,
however. They .110 noted th.t, delpit. the unqu.lified opinionl, there w.re lome
more or le•• lerious .hortcomin;. in .om••r.... It wc•••••ntial th.t the
.dministration. concerned t.k. a I.rlou••nd pOlitiv••ttitud. to the
r.comm.nd.tion. of the Board of Auditorl .n~ t.k. rem.dial .ction without delay,
Member St.t.s also h.d a re.pon.ibility to p.rticipat. activ.ly in the proce.s
through th.ir r.pre.ent.tiv•• in the re.pectiv. bodie••

59, The Noraic dele;ationl noted with concern th.t the Bo.rd of Audltor8 h.d .gain
felt compelled to ll1u. qualifi.d audit opinion. concerning UNOP and UNFPA, even
though, in par.graph 2 of ita re.olution 43/21&, the a.n.r.l AII.mbly had requ.lt.d
UNDP and UNFPA to take immediate .tep. to corr.ct the .ituationl or condition. that
had qiven ri •• to the qualification of .udit opinion.. At the lam. tim., they
note~ with .ati,faction that lom. improvem.ntl had b.en mad••nd called on UNOP and
executing ag.ncie. to work t09.th.r to impl.m.nt furth.r improv.lnent. in the
account. for 1989,

1 , • ,

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



MC. 5/44/SR. 4
IngU.h
Page 12

60. Th. Nordic d.l.g.tion. w.r. al.o conc.rn.d .t .om. i ••u•• r.lated to UNDP and
UNrPA .ccounting polici•• and th.ir impl.m.nt.tion in tho•• orq.ni.ation••
Compli.nc. with q.n.r.lly acc.pt.d .ccounting principl•• , ba••d on the d.livery of
good••nd ••rvic•• , w•• the b•• t appro.ch. Th. Nordic countri•• would like to •••
a par.aqraph to th.t .ff.ct in the draft r••olution on the itlm.

61. Thl Nordic countril' were ••p.cially concern.d about the Bo.rd's ob.ervations
rog.rding UNDP. Th.y .gr••d with the Bo.rd on the nl.d for b.tt.r budqetary
disciplin. in UNDP. Th.r. w.s a n••d to d.vi.1 .nd imp1lm.nt more .fficient
m.thod. for programme m.n.g.m.nt .nd for monitoring proj.ct. onc. they w.r. under
way. Th. Nordic d.l.g.tJon. lookld forw.rd to di.cu•• ion of th.t m.tt.r in the
UNDP Gov.rning Council.

62. Shortcoming. in proj.ct m.nag.m.nt, including allay. in proj.ct d.livlry, had
contribut.d to • furth.r incr•••• in UNDP'. r •••rv•• in 1988. Th. Gov.rning
Council .hou1d giv. the high~st priority to initi.tinq .ublt.nti.l improvements in
tho pl.nning *nd impl.~.nt.tion of ~roj.ct. tailor.d to the ~r••t need. of many
d.velopinq countri•••

63. Th. dlb.t. on the reports of the Bo.rd of Auditor. often
neg.tiv. impr••• ion of the work of the audit.d org.ni••tion••
d.)agltion. wish.d to .s.ur. the st.ff ~f tho•• orq.ni.ation•
• ppr.ci.ted th.ir work .nd th.ir dedic.tion.

tend.d to qive a
The Nordic

th.t th.y highly

64. Mr.l....YAHU (C.n.d.) ••id that condd.ration of the v.flou. financial ,t.t.ments
arid .udit report. in the Fift.h Cc,nvnitt•• pl.y.d • k.y roll in promotinq .ound
fin.nci.l m.n.g.m.nt .nd .ff.ctiv. programme d.liv.ry. That, coupled with
conlid.r.tion of the .udit r.ports in the qov.rning bodi•• of the organizations
conc.rn.d, h.lp.d to .nsur. optimum u•• of r••ourc•• and incr••••d confidence in
the oper.tion. of the Unitld N.tion. and, thu., incr••••d .upport for the
Organization. Hi. d.l.~ation wal qr.tifi.d th.r.for. by the genere' trend of
gov.rning bodi•• to .pond morl time dilculling audit r.port.. It wa. particularly
encour.y.d by the m.nn.r in which UNDP h.d .ct.d on those reports. T~er. w•• scope
for .v.n more d.tail.d di.cu.sion by qov.rninq bodi.s of the issues raised by the
audit report., how.v.r, and his del.g.tion wi.h.d to know which governing bodies
had invit.d a r.pr.sentative o! the Board of Auditors to b. pr.sent at their
meetings.

65. His deleg.tion was pl.ased that the Bo.rd had that year included I~parate

sectionR on financial .tatement••nd management i ••"e. in its reports and had
indicated the relative priority of it. r.convn.ndation.. The discu.sion of
management i.sue. covered a wider range than in pr.vious years and showed a
noticeable trend tow.rd. greater clarity of exposition. Those improvements would
contribute to a better understanding of the issues rai ••d and therefore increase
the ulefulness of the r.portl. In its previoul y.ar'l resolution, the Committee
had asked the Board to stUdy the desirability .nd fealibility of conducting its
reviewl in a more compreh.nlive manner. Hil delegation would appr8ciate hearing
the Board'l views on more c~mpr.hensiv. auditing .nd the directions it might take.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.S/44/SR.4
Enqliah
paqe 13

(Mr. Yahlr, Canada)

66. In 1988, the Committee had aqain alked orqani.ati~n. which had receiv.d
qua1ifi.d audit opinion. to corr.ct defici.nciel. Althouqh at l •••t thr•• of the
aix orq.ni••tion. und.r con.ideration in 1989 had r.c.ive~ qualifi.d opinion~,

con.iderabl. proqr••• had b••n mad.. Th••ffortl of UNDP in particular w.r. to be
comm.nded. It wa. al.o enoouraqinq that UNRWA, whioh had had a qualifi.d opinion
in 19de, had r.c.iv.d an unqualifi.d opinion in 198Q.

67. W••kn••••• h.d b••n not.d in the .y.t.m of allotm.nt control in ~.arly all
a9.nci." and the matt.r wa. d.alt with .xplicitly in the r.port. on U~DP, UNFPA,
UNITAR and UNRCR. In the ca•• of UNITAR, .xp.nditur•• ,xc'lded allotm·lnta in five
out of ,.v.n budq.t chapt.r. of the G.nlral Fund. I~ UNOP, 35 cut of 114 field
offic•• had .xo••d.d th.ir allotment. at Ylar-.nd, comparld with 30 in 1986 and 2~

in 1981. Althouqh the admini.tration. arqu.d that the .ituation w~. not aa bad a.
the Board .uqq••t.d, tho•• defici.~ci•• , and the oft.n neqative r.,pon••• to the
findinq, and r.comm.ndation. of the Board of Auditor. w.r. dilmayillq. Th. i ••uI of
unliquidated obliqation. aqain appear.d in the r.port. on UNDP, UNFPA. and UNRWA.
Hi. d.1.qation concurr.d with the vi.w of the Board of Auditor. that the critlria
for recordlnq unliquidat.d obliqation. dep.rted from qln.rally acceptld accounting
principl•• , allow.d too much f1.xlbillty and crlat.d unc.rtainty a. to the accuracy
of r.port.d .xp.nditure, and .ndor••d the r.comm.ndation that the rell.vant
aocountinq polioi•••hould b. clarifi.d in ord.r to prlvent the pO'~libility of
abu... Hi. d.l.qation look.d forward to the continu.d examination I~f the ia.u. by
the Board, a. r.qu••ted by the Advilory Board, and it. r.port on the lubj.ct to the
Fifth Committ•••

68. It wa. important to .tandardi•• both finanoial .tat.m.nt. and accountinq
polieie.. In that reqard, the r.port of the S.cr.tary-G.neral on the .ubject
(A/44/537) "wa. u••ful. A1thouqh th.r. w.r. no int.rnational .tandard. for
finanoia1 .tatem.nt. in Gov.rnm.nt .ntiti•• , the Unitld Nation. Iy.tlm Ihould use
•• • fram.work the int.rnational .tandardl i ••u.d by the International Accounting
Standard. Committ_.. Hll d.l.qatlon would invite the Board of Auditor. to kl'p
under r.vi.w the .tat.d accountinq polieie. of .ach entity in r.lation to the
othlr. and to drew the att.ntion of the Fifth Committ•• to any sp.cific ar.a. in
which it con.id.r.d a conlparativ. review of tho.e poliet•• to b. r.quir.d.

69. It would b. u••ful for the audit opiniona .xpr••••d in the r.port. of the
Board and the report. th.m••lv•• to b. dat.d, .0 that the .xact p.riod to which
th.y ref.rr.d could b. known.

70. Th. Board of Auditor.' r.port. on UNDP and UNFPA w.re of particular concern to
hi. d.l.qatlon b.cau•• th.y oncl again repr••ented qualified opinion.. De.pit. the
notable improv.m.nt. m3d. in 1988, the proportion. of unaudit.d programmo
exp.nditure r.mained too high. A fundamental change was required in the accounting
and auditinq rllatlon.hip., particularly a. r.gar~ed Government-executed projects.
His del.~ation appr.ciat.d the .ffort. mad. by the UNDP Governing Council to
addr••• the i ••u., mo.t partiCUlarly through it. decision 89/61. It saw potential
m.rit in the proposal for a limited r.view durin~ the mid-biennium year. However,
before pronouncing a definitive view, it would wibh to know from the Board what was

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/U/SR.4
Engli.h
Page 14

(Hr. yahlr, Canada)

the difflrence between an audit and a limited revilw and whether the proposed
review would finally enable the Board to i.sue a clean opinion on pro'ects carried
out by e.ecuting agencies. The biennial sub~is.ion of audited financial statements
repre.ented a compromise solution, aince financial statements were useful when they
were available on a timely basis. The UNOP Administration was to be commended for
preparing and circulating appropriate guidelines including further recommendations
made by the Board of Auditors and for having established a small, specialized unit
in the Division for Audit and Management Review to implement those measures.

71. The existence in both UNOP and UNFPA of a la~k of delineation between
programme, programme support and operating expenditure had once again heen
identified. That practice had led to a distortion of a key indicator ~f programme
delivery performance. The UNOP Administrator's reply lacked the precision to be
e.pected. For that reason, his delegation supported the ACABQ recommendation that
the Administration of UNOP, in consultation with the Board of Auditors, carry out a
review in order to establish clear guidelines.

72. In many cases the UNOP Administration, in replying to the Board's findings,
had stated that particular practices and procedures had been approved by the
Governing Council and that it did not propose to make any changes. In that and
other ways, the report reflected a certain tension and resistance between the
auditors and the Administration. In 1989 the observations of the Administration
were for the first time contained in a leparate .ection because ~hey had been
received too late to be incorporated into the text of the Board's report. He urged
cl0.er co-operation between the parties involved in the audit to achieve the common
objectives of ensuring financial and managerial integrity, and concurred with the
view of ACABQ that the observations of the administrations must be available to the
Board prior to the finalizin9 of its report.

73. In connection with the Board's comments on the recording of unliquidated
obligations by UNOP and UNFPA, his delegation hoped that the UNOP Administration
would provi~e information on where the review by the Panel of External Auditors
currently stood. The Administration had an obligation to demonstrate that its
current policies and procedures were in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

74. His delegation concurred with the objectivel of UNOP for the placement of
funds and currency management and the observation that exchange risks could not be
avoided. It was gene:ally pleased with the investment strategy in recent years.

75. His delegation continued Lo be concelned with the liquidity position of UNDP.
Despite favourable developments on global delivery, the .Iiquidity position had
increased from $1,096.7 million in 1987 to $1,166.3 million in 1988. That
represented the fifth year in succe~sion that it had been necessary to mention that
point. It was difficult to accept that steady accumulation of resource. intended
for programme delivery during a time ~f critical need for developing countries.
His delegation would ask the Administration of UNOP to provide the Committ.ee with a
forecast of liquidity position for the rest of the current cycle.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
Eng11lh
Page 15

(Mr. yab.r, Canada)

76. His d.legation shar'd the conc.rns .xpr••••d by the Board of Auditors on
programme bUdgeting and implementation, which were identifi.d by ACABQ as a central
is.u. for UNDP op.rations. It also look.d forward to r.c.iving th. report call.d
for in UNDP decilion 89/61, paragraph 10.

77. With r.gard to UNITAR, h. not.d that .xp.nditur•• ov.r allotm.nt. amount.d to
19 p.r c.nt and that lom. proj.cts had incurr.d .xp.nditur.s .v.n though no
allotments had b••n issued. His d.legation supported the Board's r.commendation
that .xpenditures .hould not b. allow.d to .xc.ed allotments and that no
expenditur.s should b. incurr.d for special purpose proj.cts unless allotments had
b••n issu.d for th. purpo... M.mb.r Stat•• n••d.d to have confid.nc. that
.xpenditur.s would take plac. in accordanc. with the programmatic and financial
proposals contained in the bUdg.t. In conclusion, he said that his d.l.gation
supported the vi.ws and recomm.ndations of the Board of Auditors and the ACABQ on
the r.ports of UNHCR and UNRWA.

78.~ (Banglad.sh) said that the r.ports of th. Board of Auditoru
Ihow.d that w.akn.ss.s continu.d to .xist in the ar.a. of budg.tary control,
financial stat.ments and proj.ct activities of UNDP, UNFPA, UNITAR, UNRWA and the
voluntary funds administ.red by the Unit.d Nations High Commission.r for R.fuge.s.
It wa. to be hop.d that the r.comm.ndations mad. in that conn.ction by th. BoarS of
Auditor. and th. Ad~isory Committ•• would be tak.n into account and carri.d out.

79. In conn.ction with docum.nt A/44/5/Add.1, h. not.d with satisfaction that the
Administration of UNDP had resolv.d six out of nine grounds for the qualifications
mad. by the Auditors in the 1087 audit r.ports. On the other hand, it had be.n
di.appoint.d that it was the Bo~ "s conclusion that a sub.tantial portion of
adminiltrativ. and programme support cost. had b••n misclOAllified IS programme
.xp.nditur. and that no action had b.en tak.n to corroct tl/at lituati~n. Th.
importance of d.lineation betw••n administrative, programme support and p~rogramm.

costs could not be overemphasiz.d, and his delegation therefore supported the
recomm.ndations made by the Board in paragraph 6 (0), chapter 11 of ita report
(A/44/5/Add.1).

80. Th. Board of Auditors had obs.rved that notwithstanding its catalytic role,
the impact of the implementation of small projects was often marginal, although it
had not given its reasons for that conclusion. UNDP resources w.r. allocated
through the process of country programming, in accordanc. with the priorities and
developm.nt objectives of the recipient countries, a process that had proved
satisfactory up to the present. No single solution could be appli.d to the
diversity of socio-economic situations of the developing countries and for that
reason his delegation could not agr~e with th. Board's observation.

81. On. problem that persist.d was tha~ the United Nations .x.cuting ag.nci.s did
not submit their audited atatements prior to the closing of the UNDP accounts or
before the External Auditors had issued their audit opinion of UNDP accounts.
Cons.quently, the Board had had to issue fleveral qualified opinions. The basic
reason fOt' that situation was that the executing agencies were audited on a

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
Inglllh
P.g. 16

(Mr. Mobiuddin. B.ngl.de.b)

bienni.l b••i.. Tb••udit report b.d also be.n critic.l .bout tbe .udit of
gov.rnment-ex.cut.d programme .xp.nditure.. Hi. d.l.q.tion hop.d that botb
probl.m. could b. r.solv.d by tb. impl.ment.tion of UNDP Gov.rninq Council d.cision
89/61 .nd tb.t the .itu.tion would .lso b. improved by the new proc.dur••
introduc.d witb .ff.ct on 1 J.nu.ry 1989. In .ddition, d.fici.ncie. h.d be.n
point.d out in r.cording unliquid.t.d obliq.tions .t y••r-.nd .nd in c.sh
m.n.g.m.nt, ••po.ing the org.ni••tion to .xcb.ng. risk••

82. BUdg.tary disciplin. in the field offic•• w•• f.r from .ati.f.ctorYI out of a
total of 114 fi.l~ offic•• , 35 h.d exce.d.d their allotm.nts at year-end. A number
af w••kn••••• in UNDP p.r.onnel policies h.d .1.0 been found .nd his delegation was
conc.rn.d tb.t the r.cruitm.nt of consult.nt., .nd in p.rticular the .bsenc. of any
evalu.tion of the cnn.ult.nt.' work, were not in compli.nce witb the r.levant
pOlicy quid.lin•••

83. In it. r.port, t~e Bo.rd of Auditor. had drawn .tt.ntion to wide v.ri.tion in
tb••t.ffing of fi.ld office., which was not ju.tified by the work-lo.d, .nd h.d
••id th.t tb. ratio b.tw••n tb. indicative pl.nninq fiqure (IPF) .nd .t.Cf r.ng.d
from on. to four. H. th.r.for••gr••d with tb. Bo.rd th.t qu.ntitative indic.tors
should b. u••d in .ny compr.h.nsiv. r.vi.w of that .ituation. In tbat conn.ction,
it w•• r.l.v.nt to m.ntion tbe critic.l situ.tion of the R.gional Bur.au for Asia
and tb. Pacifio, which b.d exp.rienc.d aeveral year. of .ero growth .nd ataff
r.duction.. At tb. sam. tim., the Bur••u h.d •••n ••ignific.nt incr•••• in its
IPP .xp.nditur.. Anot~.r .xampl. of in.ppropri.t. p.r.onnel policy w•• th.t among
tb. 112 UNDP R•• id.nt R.pr••ent.tiv•• around the world, only three were from the
A.i.-Pacific r.gion. Hi. d.l.q.tion boped th.t tb. n.c••••ry corrective me.sures
would b. t.ken and urq.d the Bo.rd of Auditor. to look into tho.e two a.p.cts and
to .ubmit tbeir findinq. in the n.xt report.

84. With r••p.ct to the report contain.d in document A/44/5/Add.7, hi. delegation
was pl••••d tbat the .dmini.tration of the United N.tion. Fund for Popul.tion
Activiti•• (UNFPA) h.d in mo.t c•••• taken not. of .nd h.d welcomed the
observ.tions of the Bo.rd of Auditors. It w•• to be hoped that it would take the
n.c•••ary .t.p. fo~ the early implementation of those observations. His
d.legation's comments .bout UNDP .lso applied to UNFPA in so far as they touched on
the distinction between programme and administration expenditur.s, exchange risks,
programme exp.nditures incurred by Unit.d Nations executing .gencies and programme
expenditures incurred by Governments.

85. Commenting on document A/44/5/Add.3, he said that his delegation was concerned
about tbe high fees comm.nded by the four investment managers of the Area Staff
Provident Fund and by the fact th.t one of those managers had unilaterally
increased his fee from 0.75 per thousand to 1.25 per thousand. It was also
disturbing to find that while the inve8tment had increased by only 55 per cent, the
total fees paid to the investment managers and custodian had increased by
161 per cent from 1985 to 1988. His delegation therefore urged the administration

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 17

(Mr. Mobiuddin, Bangladesh)

of the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near
East (UNRWA) to review that unsatisfactory situation and to take immediate remedial
action.

86. Mr. GROSSMAH (United States of America) emphasiled the importance of a
discussion of the financial statements and the reports of the Board of Auditors.
It was to be hoped that delegations would devote sufficient time to preparing a
draft resolution on the iteml resolutions from previous years had been instrumental
in improving the oversight role of Member States in the audit process.

87. It was important for the Member State. to be assured that the resources
provided to international organilations were used in the most effective and
efficient manner. Yet, the auditor. had all too often di.closed instances of waste
or inefficiency. Agencies must take concerted action to eliminate overlap and
duplication of activities and to maintain accountability for the use of all funds,
The transparency of an organilation was enhanced when the auditors were satisfied
that expenditure~ were accurately recorded in financial statements, Member States
for their part should carefully examine the auditors' reports and ensure that the
organilations remedied the deficiencies cited.

88. It was a matter for concern that qualified audit opinion. had been issued for
the United Na~ions Development Pl:ogramme (UNDP) and the United Nations Population
Fund (UNFPA). While significant progress had been made towards resolving many of
the problems which had elicited previous qualifications, other problems persisted.
Although the auditors had issued unqualified opinions for other audited agencies,
the financial management of UNRWA and UNHCR presented problems.

89. With respect to UNDP, it was encouraging that, owing to the combined efforts
of the Administrator and his staff and the Governing Council, six of the nine
specific grounds for th~ qualification in 1987 had been resolved. The absence of
audited expenditure data for programmes executed by some agencies and Governments
was the main reason for the expression of a qualified opinion in 1988. To resolve
that problem, the UNDP Governing Council had recommended that the audit cycle
should be changed to a biennial basis, thus allowing UNDP to receive audit
certificates from all executing agencies. The General Assembly should endorse the
recommendation of the Governing Council, since it did not reduce oversight by
Member States. Under the new system, the Board of Auditors would issue a report on
substantive matters, inclUding management issues, covering the first year of each
biennium.

90. The same approach could be applied to UNICEF, which had recently adopted a
biennial audit system. In 1986, the UNICEF Executive Board had decided, without
consulting the General Assembly, to modify its audit process. As a result, the
Board was not able to issue a report on the first year of each bienniuml yet such a
report was essential for proper management of UNICEF, The General Assembly should

.request the Board of Auditors to prepare a report similar to the report to be
prepared on UNDP, beginning in 1990,

I • ••Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 18

(Mr. Grossman, United States)

91. In spite of the additional resources approved by the UNDP Governing Council to
improve the audit process of financial statements from projects executed by
Governments, little progress appeared to have been made in that area. The Council
had given priority to increasing the share of UNDP projects executed by
Governments. However, the continuing failure of many Governments to comply with
the requests of the Council and the Administrator were of serious concern. The
General Assembly should urge the Council to consider freezing the award of new
projects to those Governments which had been unwilling to provide audit
certificates.

92. His delegation had taken note of the observations of the Board Df Auditors
concerning the accuracy of project budgeting. At the 36th UNDP Governing Council,
his delegation had proposed the study of current project budgeting procedures, and
the proposal had been endorsed in Governing Council decision 89/61. Given the
substantial proportion of resources devoted to projects, a review of the project
budgeting procedure should be an urgent task for the auditors.

93. The auditors had noted a duplication and overlap in the public information
activities of UNDP. Substantial savings could be achieved through a complete
restructuring of those programmes, and the Governing Council should be urged to
undertake such a review as a matter of priority.

94. The audit findings on the United Nations Development Fund for Women (UNIFEM)
confirmed the views expressed by a number of delegations in the Governing Council
regarding the duplication in activities carried out by the Fund and the Division
for Women in Development. "His delegation hoped that the Administration and the
Governing Council would carry out a comprehensive review of that matter. In
addition, it hoped that the new Director of UNIFEM would take seriously the
observations of the Board of Auditors concerning the high level of administrative
costs. In the revised 1990-1991 budget estimates to be submitted to the Council in
1990 those costs should be reduced.

95. The Board had issued a qualified opinion on the UNFPA accounts because the
discrepancy between the UNFPA one-year budget cycle and the biennial cycle of the
executing agencies meant that audit certificates could not be produced, and also
because the distinction bet:ween programme and administrative and progl"o""ne-support
expenditure was not clear. The General Assembly should endorse the UNDP Governing
Council recommendation that the UNFPA audit cycle should match the organizations'
budget period, thus eliminating the problem of missing audit certificates. The
distinction between programme expenditure and administrative and programme-support
expenditure had been extensively discussed in the Governing Council, reSUlting in
Council decision 89/49. He noted with interest that UNFPA agreed on the need for
further clarification in that area.

96. The Board referred in its report to exchange gains and losses and pointed out
that, for example, adjustments arising from the lack of reV1S1on to United Nations
operational exchange rates at year end had amounted to over $5.2 million. The
Board recommended that exchange-rate fluctuations which occurred during the last

I . ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 19

(Mr. Grossman, United States)

month of the financial year and SUbstantially
reviewed, and the necessary adjustments made.
proposed discussions on that subje~t with the

affected asset values should be
UNFPA and UNDP should hold their

Controller as soon as possible.

97. His delegation shared the Board's concern that Governments and
non-governmental organizations were not crediting UNFPA accounts with the interest
earned on sizeable cash advances. It was also troubling that only one executing
agency had paid such interest to UNFPA. Steps needed to be taken.

98. The Board referred to one contract awarded by UNFPA without proper bidding
procedures or scrutiny by the Contracts Committee. UNFPA needed to establish an
overall policy on contracts and not resort again to special procedures.

99. The Board and the Advisory Committee had referred to the lack of information
on project-funded services at Headquarters. His delegation shared the Advisory
Committee's view that Governing Council decision 86/35 on such services should be
strictly applied.

100. He expressed concern at the comments made on the UNRWA Area Staff Provident
Fund. The fees paid to the Fund's investment managers had increased by
161 per cent between 1985 and 1988, while the resources of the Fund had increased
by just 55 per cent. The administration's reply on the matter was incomplete. It
was to be hoped that the Agency would act on the recommendations of the Board and
the Advisory Committee without delay.

101. Regarding the report on the Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for
Refugees (UNHCR), his delegation supported the auditors' recommendation that
greater efforts should be made to raise funds from non-gover.nmental sources.

102. In resolution 43/216, paragraph 7, the General Assembly requested the
Secretary-General and the executive heads of United Nations organizations and
programmes to report through the Board of Auditors on any action they had taken
pursuant to the Board's recommendations. Given the late submission of those
reports to the General Assembly, he wondered whether the Board had had a chance to
review them and examine the efficiency of the corrective measures taken. Perhaps
the Chairman oi the Board could provide the Committee with the Board's views. The
conclusions ef. document A/44/541 should be transmitted to the relevant governing
bodies for more detailed review.

103. The report of the Secretary-General on the presentation and format of
financial statements and accounting policies of all audited organizations and
programmes (A/44/537) mentioned that in the late 1970s the Administrative Committee
on Co-ordination had laid down that reports and financial statements should follow
the broad principles of clarity, simplicity, meaningfulness and full disclosure.
Those were laudable objectives, but far from being attained. In his delegation's
view, the General Assembly should endorse the objectives of ACC and the conclusions
of the Secretary-General's report.

I • ••

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SR.4
English
Page 20

(Mr. Grossman, United States)

104. Finally, his delegation expressed its strong support for the views of the
Advisory Committee in document A/44/543 concerning the delay by some organizations
in replying to the comments of the Board of Auditors.

105. Mr. KULIK (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that his delegation
attached great importance to the work of the Board of Auditors, especially since
the financial reports and the Board's conclusions gave a fairly accurate picture of
how efficiently the resources provided by Member States were being used.

106. His delegation supported an expansion of the Board's functions, in order to
tighten financial discipline and expose and correct breaches of ~~e standards
established for the use of financial resources.

107. The report of the Advisory Committee, providing a detailed analysis of the
matters discussed by the Board, was a very useful tool in discussing the audited
financial statements.

108. Unfortunately, close reading of the documents showed that many audits had
revealed breaches of the rules governing the submission of supporting documents.

109. Discussion of the financial reports and audited financial statements must not
be confined to the Fifth Committee: the competent governing bodies should take any
action required to put the conclusions and recommendations of the Board into
effect. In that respect he agreed with the Canadian representative, and welcomed
the fact that the 1988 agendas of the UNICEF Executive Board and the UNDP Governing
Council had included consideration of the reports of the Board of Auditors.
Unfortunately, experience showed that the Board's comments, conclusions and
recommendations were not being given due attention.

110. Action must be taken on the Board's recommendations, and the Fifth Committee
and the Board must be duly informed. Only thus could the efficiency, efficacy,
authority and responsibility of the Board be enhanced.

Ill. In connection with the separation of programme, programme-support and
administrative spending, he cited the examples of UNDP and UNFPA. The topic had
already been the subject of comments and recommendations by the Board of Auditors,
but as the Board pointed out, the action taken had been both inadequate and
piecemeal.

112. The desire to complete projects in the field as quickly as possible was
understandable, but financial discipline must not be forgotten. Spending must be
kept within the funds provided in order to be sure that the resources to carry
projects out would be there. A number of trust funds were in deficit because that
requirement had not been observed.

113. Many organizations objected to the Board's conclusions and recommendations.
In several cases the real problem very likely amounted to no more than variations
in the presentation of financial statements. Thus he applauded the decision by the

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.5/44/SP..4
English
Page 21

(Mr. ~ul1k, Ukrain1AD-5SB)

United Nations Secretariat, a. pr.sented in document A/44/537, to continue to work
towards a standardi,ed format for financial statements, making the stated basic
accounting standards general and uniform.

114. The notion of perlonal liability in th. event of breaches of the financial
rule. should not be abandoned. If complience existed only on paper, the way would
be open for breach•• of financial dilcipline to become more of a chronic probl.m.

115. In addition to supporting an expansion of the Board" functions, he hoped
that, given the cuntinuing financial difficultie, which the United Nations faced
and the need for a policy of strict economy, the Board would redouble its efforts
to bring order to the finance, of the Organization and rigorously monitor
compliance with balic financial stMndards and rule••

Tbe me.t1n; rose at 0.10 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




